Statement of Federal Financial Accounting Standards 24: Selected Standards for the Consolidated Financial Report of the United States Government

| Status | |
|----------------|---|
| Issued | January 27, 2003 |
| Effective Date | For periods beginning after September 30, 2001. |
| Affects | None. |
| Affected by | SFFAS 53 amends paragraph 9 |

Summary

Most Statements of Federal Financial Accounting Standards (SFFAS) do not state whether they apply to the Government as a whole or components thereof, or both. This standard clarifies that all parts of all SFFAS apply to all Federal entities (including the consolidated entity) unless a standard specifically provides otherwise.

In addition, certain requirements of SFFAS 7, *Accounting for Revenue and Other Financing Sources and Concepts for Reconciling Budgetary and Financial Accounting*, are not relevant for the Consolidated Financial Report of the United States Government (CFR). SFFAS 7 requires information on budgetary resources and a reconciliation of obligations and other resources used with the net cost of operations. These requirements, while relevant for agencies executing the budget, are not required for the CFR.

This standard requires that new statements be presented in the CFR, but not agency or departmental financial statements, regarding net operating revenue (or cost), budget surplus (or deficit), and cash. The new statements are principal CFR financial statements, and they are to be presented on a comparative basis.

Table of Contents

| | Page |
|--|------|
| Summary | 1 |
| Introduction | 3 |
| Materiality | 3 |
| Effective Date | 3 |
| Accounting Standard | 4 |
| Appendix A: Basis for Conclusions | 6 |
| Appendix B: Illustrative Statement: Reconciliation | 12 |
| Appendix C: Illustrative Statement: Statement Of Changes In Cash Balance | 13 |
| Appendix D: Statement of Budgetary Resources | 14 |
| Appendix E: Statement of Financing | 16 |
| Glossary | 18 |

Introduction

- Statements of Federal Financial Accounting Standards (SFFAS) usually do not state explicitly whether they apply to the Government as a whole, its component entities (e.g., departments, agencies, etc.), or both. Statement of Federal Financial Accounting Concepts (SFFAC) 1, Objectives of Federal Financial Reporting, uses the term "entity" generically to refer, depending on the context, to the U.S. Government as a whole, organizational component units of the Government, e.g., an agency, or to other kinds of potential reporting units such as programs.
- 2. Some have assumed that the standards apply to both component entities and the Government as a whole, unless otherwise stated. SFFAS 1, Accounting for Selected Assets and Liabilities of the Federal Government, states that it applies to the Government and its departments and agencies, as does SFFAS 8, Supplementary Stewardship Reporting. SFFAC 2, Entity and Display, states that Federal entities aggregate into the Government entity, which encompasses all the resources and responsibilities existing within the component entities.
- 3. This standard clarifies that all existing and future standards apply to all federal entities unless a standard specifically provides otherwise.
- 4. This standard also exempts the CFR from certain provisions of SFFAS 7, Accounting for Revenue and Other Financing Sources and Concepts for Reconciling Budgetary and Financial Accounting, requiring information about budgetary resources and a reconciliation of budgetary obligations with the cost of operations from the proprietary accounting system. Such information is relevant and meaningful for entities financed with budgetary resources but not for the Government as a whole.
- 5. In addition, this standard requires new information for the CFR (but not component entity financial statements) that reconciles the annual proprietary net cost with the unified budget surplus (or deficit), and explains the changes in the Government's cash balance. The information is to be presented in new CFR principal financial statements that are to be presented on a comparative basis.

Materiality

6. The provisions of this accounting standard need not be applied to immaterial items.

Effective Date

7. This amendment is effective for periods beginning after September 30, 2001.

Accounting Standard

Standards for the Consolidated Financial Report of the U.S. Government

8. Statements of Federal Financial Accounting Standards (SFFAS) apply to all federal entities, that is, to the Government as a whole and to **component entities** (terms defined in the glossary appear initially in **boldface**), unless provision is made for different accounting treatment in a current or subsequent SFFAS.

Budgetary Information Not Required for the Government as a Whole

9. Paragraphs 77-82 of SFFAS 7 are not applicable to the consolidated financial report of the U.S. Government as a whole.¹

Reconciliation Information

- 10. The financial report of the Government as a whole should provide a financial statement reconciling **net operating revenue (or cost)** and the annual **unified budget surplus (or deficit)**. The financial statement should highlight:
 - The components of net operating revenue (or cost) that are not part of the unified budget surplus (or deficit), including the accrued and amortized expenses not included in **budget outlays** and the accrued or other revenue not included in **budget receipts**;
 - The components of the unified budget surplus (or deficit) that are not part of net operating revenue (or cost), including budget receipts and outlays that are not included in net operating revenue (or cost).
- 11. Appendix B provides an illustration of how the reconciliation data could be displayed. The illustration is not intended to be prescriptive.

¹Footnote rescinded by SFFAS 53.

Information about the Unified Budget Surplus or Deficit and Cash

- 12. The Government as a whole should provide a financial statement explaining how the annual unified budget surplus or deficit relates to the change in the Government's cash. The financial statement should highlight:
 - The components of the unified budget surplus or deficit that are not part of the annual change in cash, including non-cash budget outlays; and
 - Items affecting the Government's cash balance that are not included in the budget outlays or receipts. The statement should prominently display the cash inflow and outflow related to the changes in debt held by the public and interest accrued and interest paid on debt held by the public.
- 13. Appendix C provides an illustration of how this information could be displayed. The illustrations are not intended to be prescriptive.

Principal Financial Statements Presented on a Comparative Basis

14. The financial statements required in paragraphs 10-13 immediately above are **principal financial statements**. These statements and all other principal financial statements in the consolidated financial report of the Government as a whole should be presented on a comparative basis. The current fiscal year amounts should be presented in a column adjacent to the amounts for the previous fiscal year.

The provisions of this Statement need not be applied to information if the effect of applying the provision(s) is immaterial. Refer to Statement of Federal Financial Accounting Concepts 1, Objectives of Federal Financial Reporting, chapter 7, titled Materiality, for a detailed discussion of the materiality concepts.

Appendix A: Basis for Conclusions

A1. This appendix summarizes some of the considerations deemed significant by the Board in reaching the conclusions in this Statement. It includes the reasons for accepting certain approaches and rejecting others. Individual members gave greater weight to some factors than to others.

This Statement may be affected by later Statements. The FASAB Handbook is updated annually and includes a status section directing the reader to any subsequent Statements that amend this Statement. Within the text of the Statements, the authoritative sections are updated for changes. However, this appendix will not be updated to reflect future changes. The reader can review the basis for conclusions of the amending Statement for the rationale for each amendment.

- A2. FASAB published the exposure draft Selected Standards for the Consolidated Financial Report of the United States Government, in March 2002. The exposure draft included questions about each of the three areas of interest: (1) whether standards should apply to the Government as a whole as well as to component entities; (2) whether the CFR should be exempt from the requirement for a Statement of Budgetary Resources and a Statement of Financing; and (3) whether new statements should be required for the Government as a whole.
- A3. The Board received 16 responses as follows:

| Category | Federal (Civilian) | Federal (Military) | Non-Federal |
|---|-----------------------|-----------------------|-------------|
| Users, academics, and others ² | | | 5 |
| Auditors | 1 | 1 | |
| Preparers and financial managers | 8 | 1 | |

Standards Apply to the Government as a Whole as Well as to Component Entities

A4. In Statement of Federal Financial Accounting Concepts (SFFAC) 1 *Objectives of Federal Financial Reporting*, the Board uses the term "entity" generically to refer, depending on the context, to the Government as a whole, organizational component units of the Government, e.g., an agency, or to other kinds of potential reporting units such as programs.³ SFFAC 2,

² This category includes professional organizations, academics, and private citizens.

³ SFFAC 1, fn. 2-3, and par. 212.

Entity and Display, states that Federal entities aggregate into the Federal Government entity, which encompasses all the resources and responsibilities existing within the component entities.⁴

- A5. Although Statement of Federal Financial Accounting Standards (SFFAS) 1, *Accounting for Selected Assets and Liabilities of the Federal Government*, states that it is applicable to both the Government as a whole and component entities⁵, other standards have not explicitly addressed the subject unless different treatment was specified. SFFAS 6, *Accounting for Property, Plant, and Equipment*, refers the reader to SFFAC 2, *Entity and Display*, for guidance on the general applicability of federal accounting standards. SFFAS 8, *Supplementary Stewardship Reporting*,⁶ explicitly states that it applies to the Government and its departments and agencies; and sets an effective date for its applicability to component entities but not for the Consolidated Financial Report of the U.S. Government (CFR) because more time is needed to delineate how the stewardship information would be aggregated. SFFAS 8 also requires a "current services assessment" for the CFR but not for individual reports of its component units. Likewise in SFFAS 17, *Social Insurance*, applicability is addressed because certain requirements for component entities are not applicable to, and summarization of certain data is allowed for, the CFR.
- A6. This standard clarifies that SFFAS apply to all Federal entities unless a current or subsequent standard specifically provides otherwise. All of the respondents who addressed the issue agreed that the FASAB standards should apply to the CFR. Several respondents requested more guidance regarding whether the proposed standard affected the FASAB policy whereby "financial statements [prepared] in accordance with accounting standards published by [the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)] also may be regarded as in accordance with GAAP for those entities that have in the past issued such financial statements." The Board did not intend to change and is not changing this policy at this time.

Consolidated Financial Report Exemption from Requirements to Report Certain Budgetary Information

A7. All but one of the respondents who addressed the issue agreed that the CFR should be exempt from certain provisions of SFFAS 7, Accounting for Revenue and Other Financing Sources and Concepts for Budgetary and Financial Accounting, requiring a Statement of Budgetary Resources (SBR) and the Statement of Financing (SOF). One respondent

⁴ SFFAC 2, par. 38.

⁵SFFAS 1, par. 14.

⁶ SFFAS 8, par. 38-39.

⁷ FASAB News, Jan.-March 2000, p. 2.

disagreed, saying that the same information, based on one single set of standards, required for components should be required for the CFR, and vice versa. That respondent believes that the CFR should present the SBR and SOF, because such combined budgetary information is relevant and useful to the user of the CFR. Likewise, the component entities should be required to prepare the new statements, the necessary changes being made, as well as the SBR and SOF.

- A8. SFFAS 7 requires entities "whose financing comes wholly or partially from the budget" to provide information on budgetary resources and the status of resources, which is presented in the SBR.⁸ It also calls for a reconciliation of budgetary resources obligated by the entity with the net cost of operations, which is presented in the SOF.⁹
- A9. The Board continues to believe that such information is less relevant or meaningful at the level of the CFR. Resources differ between the Government as a whole and individual component entities. The exchange and non-exchange revenue and borrowing from the public are the main sources of financing for the Government as a whole. The For component reporting entities, however, the sources of financing are provided through the budget process and are largely **financing sources** other than revenue. **Appropriations** and other budget authority provide an agency with the authority to incur obligations to acquire goods and services or to provide benefits and grants. Budgetary resources are not earned by an entity's operations and have a different character than both exchange revenue and non-exchange revenue. Federal entities report as an asset their fund balance with Treasury, which is the aggregate amount of funds in the entity's accounts with Treasury for which the entity is authorized to make expenditures and pay liabilities. This is an intra-government item. From the perspective of the Government as a whole, it is not an asset. It represents a commitment to make resources available to federal departments, agencies, programs, etc. The second commitment to make resources available to federal departments, agencies, programs, etc.

⁸ SFFAS 7 (pars. 77-79) requires information, which is presented in the SBR, that includes (1) total budgetary resources available, (2) the status of the budgetary resources, including obligations incurred, the available appropriation, borrowing and contract authority at the end of the period, any restrictions on the use of unobligated balances of budget authority, the amount of any capital infusion during the period, etc.; and (3) outlays. In addition, the entities are required to provide this information for each of their major budget accounts as supplementary information.

⁹SFFAS 7 (pars. 80-82) also requires a reconciliation of budgetary obligations and proprietary accounting information, which is presented in the SOF. The reconciliation explains the relationship between (1) budgetary resources obligated by the entity during the period and **other financing sources** such as **imputed financing**, transfers of assets, etc., not included in budget receipts, and (2) the net cost of operations.

¹⁰ "Exchange revenue" arises when an entity provides goods and services for a price. "Non-exchange revenue" arises primarily from the exercise of the government's sovereign power to demand payment from the public, such as taxes, duties, fines, etc.

¹¹ SFFAS 7, par. 24.

¹² SFFAS 1, par. 31.

- A10. The budget process provides the principal basis for planning and controlling obligations and outlays by Government entities. Budget execution tracks the flow of budgetary resources from the congressional authorizing and appropriating process, to **apportionment**, **allotment**, and obligation of the budgetary resources, to the outlay of cash to satisfy those obligations. For the most part, obligations and cash, rather than **accrual accounting**, are the bases for budgeting and reporting on budget execution.¹³
- A11. Accrual accounting is the basis for **proprietary accounting** in the Federal Government. Proprietary accounting and **budgetary accounting** are complementary. Proprietary accounting provides an understanding of the entity's net position and cost of operations during a period. Federal Government financial statements have not been used for planning and control as much as they might be. In part, this is because general purpose financial reports have not presented budget information with the financial statements in a way that helped users relate these two important, but different, types of financial information. The Board's objective in requiring new statements in the CFR addresses this issue.

The Government as a Whole Should Provide Information about Net Operating Revenue (or Cost), the Budget Surplus (or Deficit), and Cash

- A12. The information now required in two new statements serves the basic objectives of federal accounting. Objective 1¹⁵ provides that federal financial reporting should assist in fulfilling the Federal Government's duty to be publicly accountable for the money raised through taxes and other means, and for their expenditure in accordance with the appropriation laws. Sub-objective 1C provides that federal financial reporting should provide information that helps the reader to determine how information on the use of budgetary resources relates to information on the costs of program operations and whether information on the status of budgetary resources is consistent with other accounting information on assets and liabilities.
- A13. In a new statement of concepts issued contemporaneously with this standard, the Board recognizes that the CFR should be understandable to the average citizen. The new statements required in this standard were designed with this objective in mind.
- A14. Although budgetary and proprietary accounting information are complementary, both the types of information and the timing of their recognition are different, caused by differences in the basis of accounting.¹⁶

¹³ SFFAS 7, par. 25.

¹⁴ SFFAS 7, par. 26.

¹⁵ SFFAC 1, pars. 112, 119.

¹⁶ SFFAC 7, par. 80.

- A15. The new statements required by this standard focus on three important elements: (1) the net operating revenue (or cost) from the proprietary accounting system, (2) the unified budget surplus (or deficit), and (3) the change in the Government's cash during the period. The information is presented in two parts: (1) a reconciliation of the net operating revenue (or cost) to the unified budget surplus (or deficit), and (2) a statement of changes in cash balance from budget and other activities.
- A16. The purpose of the reconciliation information is to report how the proprietary net operating revenue (or cost) and the unified budget surplus (or deficit) relate to each other. The premise of the reconciliation is that the proprietary and budget accounting bases share much data. The reconciliation presents the differences between the two systems as reconciling items while moving from the proprietary amount to the unified budget surplus or deficit.
- A17. The primary purpose of the statement of changes in cash balance from budget and other activities is to report how the annual unified budget surplus/deficit relates to the change in the Government's cash balance and debt held by the public. It explains why the unified budget surplus or deficit normally would not result in an equivalent change in the Government's cash balance.
- A18. All of the respondents who addressed the issue agreed that the new information should be required. Most of these respondents offered some comments on one or both of the proposed illustrations.
- A19. With respect to the terminology used in the statements, several respondents said that the term "budget" was unclear. One respondent noted that the statements use the unified budget concept, i.e., both on- and off-budget activity is included. The respondent noted that there are several other alternatives approaches, including on-budget only, the President's proposed budget, and the enacted budget. Another respondent noted that, in the non-Federal environment, a budget is a plan, but for the illustrative statements it indicates actual results on a budget accounting basis. Also, several respondents objected to the use of the term "budget surplus" as being inaccurate since there is no surplus on hand to finance future activities at the reporting date, as the statement illustrates; and, that the word "surplus" has been eliminated from private sector accounting terminology.
- A20. The Board has modified the terminology based on these comments. The word "unified" now accompanies "budget surplus or deficit" wherever that phrase is used. In addition, the word "actual" has been added to the budget line items in the statements.
- A21. With respect to the term "budget surplus," the Board notes that the term is used pervasively in Federal finance and in the popular media. It is defined comprehensively in budget publications. The Board believes that most users of the CFR have at least a working understanding of the term as an excess of the fiscal year's budget receipts over budget outlays. The statement of changes in cash balance from budget and other activities will

- illustrate how the surplus (or deficit) and other activity affected the Government's cash balance. The glossary for this standard will provide the definition.
- A22. With respect to the illustrative statement about changes in the cash balance (Appendix C in the exposure draft of March 2002, Versions A and B therein), most respondents who addressed the question preferred Version B. They said that it would be more understandable to the intended users because its groupings and subtotal were more logical.
- A23. One respondent said the FASAB should provide detailed authoritative guidance regarding the format of the reconciliation and cash statements before requiring them. The respondent was concerned that the reporting requirements are not fully developed, and that the FASAB should not require such information until it develops and prescribes an authoritative format. The Board weighed the benefits of prescribing the format of the statements against the drawbacks of placing constraints on the Treasury Department's future development of the statements. The Board believes that it is better at this time to be flexible so that the most meaningful display can evolve.
- A24. Another respondent asked the Board to clarify that the new statements would be principal financial statements. Additional wording to this effect has been added to the standard.
- A25. Several respondents urged the Board to tie the change in cash on the new statement of changes in cash balance to the balance sheet line item and accompanying note disclosure, and/or to include beginning and ending cash balances on the statement. The Board decided that such information would improve the statement and has included it in the illustration in the standard, but does not believe that it is necessary to require it as part of the standard.
- A26. One respondent said there should be some direct reference to the stewardship information on the balance sheet similar to the reference to the notes because this would inform the reader about important information not included on the balance sheet. Also, this respondent submitted that the term "National Debt" is unclear. Although the Board does not view this standard as a vehicle to address these concerns, it acknowledges the need for additional clarity and user friendliness for the CFR. The Board notes that the Treasury Department continues to improve the CFR, including the presentation of stewardship information.

Implementation Date

A27. Several respondents said that the FY 2002 implementation date for the statements would afford insufficient time to prepare the new statements. However, since the Treasury Department was a leader in developing the statements and is able to prepare them in FY 2002, and since no additional information is required from component entities, this should not be an issue.

Appendix B: Illustrative Statement: Reconciliation

| | (Hypothetical data) | | |
|------------|--|---------------|----------|
| | RECONCILIATION OF NET OPERATING REVENUE (OR COST) | | |
| | AND UNIFIED BUDGET SURPLUS (OR DEFICIT) | | |
| | for the period ending Sept. 30, 20X2 | | |
| | (in billions of dollars) | | |
| [Footnotes | s below would be to notes to the financial statements and are not provided fo | r this illust | ration.] |
| | | FY 20X2 | FY 20X1 |
| Net opera | ting revenue or (cost) | 46.0 | (50.0) |
| | ents of net operating revenue (or cost) not part of the of the budget surplus: | | |
| Ac | dd excess of accrual-basis expenses over budget outlays: | | |
| | Civilian & military employee benefits (Note X1) | | |
| | Pensions and retired pay | 75.5 | 74.0 |
| | Retiree health benefits | 14.6 | 14.7 |
| | Other benefits | 4.7 | 4.6 |
| | Subtotal civilian & military employee benefits | 94.8 | 93.3 |
| | Veteran compensation (Note X1) | 62.5 | 59.0 |
| | Environmental clean-up (Note X2) | 19.6 | 18.5 |
| | Other benefit programs (Note X3) | 4.0 | 4.5 |
| | Other | 18.5 | 17.5 |
| | Subtotal excess of accrual-basis expenses over budget outlays | 199.4 | 192.8 |
| Ad | dd amortized expenses not included in budget outlays: | | |
| | Depreciation (Note X7) | 15.4 | 15.0 |
| Ad | dd other expenses that are not reported as budget outlays: | | |
| | Premiums paid on buyback of Treasury debt (Note X10) | 5.5 | 1.6 |
| | ubtract excess of accrual-basis revenue over budget receipts: | | |
| | Accrued tax revenue (Note X5) | (0.6) | (0.7) |
| | Other accrued revenue (Note X8) | - | 1.0 |
| | ubtract other revenue and gains that are not budget receipts: | | |
| | Other revenue and gains | (2.3) | (2.2) |
| | Subtotal: components of net operating revenue (cost) not part | (- / | |
| | of budget surplus | 217.4 | 207.5 |
| Compone | ents of the budget surplus that are not part of net operating | | |
| | e (or cost): | | |
| | dd budget receipts not included in net operating revenue (or cost): | | |
| | Principal repayments on pre-credit reform loans | 24.0 | 24.5 |
| | Decrease in accounts receivable (Note X3) | 2.7 | 3.0 |
| | ubtract budget outlays not included in net operating revenue (or cost): | 2.7 | 0.0 |
| | Acquisition of capital assets (Note X7) | (31.6) | (43.0 |
| | Acquisition of inventory (Note X6) | (11.9) | (12.0 |
| | Acquisition of other assets | (5.4) | (7.0 |
| | Subtotal components of the budget surplus that are not part of | (0.4) | (7.0 |
| | net operating revenue (or cost) | (22.2) | (34.5 |
| Other: | | | |
| | rior period adjustment (Note X17) | (4.2) | - |
| | udget surplus (deficit) actual | 237.0 | 123.0 |

Appendix C: Illustrative Statement: Statement of Changes in Cash Balance

| STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CASH BALANCE | _ | |
|---|------------|----------|
| FROM UNIFIED BUDGET AND OTHER ACTIVITIE | | |
| for the Years Ended September 30, 20X2 and 20X1 | | |
| (in billions of dollars) | | |
| [Hypothetical Data] | | |
| [Footnotes below would be to notes to the financial statements and ar | | |
| | 20X2 | 20X1 |
| CASH FLOW FROM UNIFIED BUDGETED ACTIVITIES | | |
| Total unified budgetary receipts actual | 2,025.0 | |
| Total unified budgetary outlays actual | (1,788.0 | , , |
| Unified budget surplus (or deficit) actual | 237.0 | 124.0 |
| Adjustments for non-cash outlays included in the unified bud | • | |
| Interest accrued on Treasury debt held by the public | 186.0 | |
| Subsidy expense accrued under direct loan & guarantee progra | | |
| Subtotal - adjustment for non-cash transactions in unified but | lget 189.0 | 189.0 |
| CASH FLOW FROM ACTIVITIES NOT INCLUDED IN UNIFIED BUD | GET | |
| Inflows: | | |
| Repayment of principal on direct loans | 19.0 | 15.0 |
| Decrease/(increase) in miscellaneous assets (Note X2) | 1.6 | (1.0 |
| Seignorage | 2.3 | |
| Outflows: | | |
| Interest paid by Treasury on debt held by the public | (184.4 | (187. |
| New direct loans disbursed | (40.0 | |
| Other direct loan transactions | (0.7 | |
| Premium on buyback of Treasury debt held by the public (Note X3) | | |
| Default payments on guaranteed loans | (4.3 | |
| Other guaranteed loan transactions | (0.5 | <u> </u> |
| Increase/(decrease) in deposit fund liability balances (Note X4) | (1.2 | |
| Increase/(decrease) in miscellaneous liabilities (Note X4) | (0.9 | |
| Cash flow from non-budget activities | (214.6 | |
| J J | 1 | |
| Cash Flow from Monetary Transactions | | |
| Decrease in reserve position in the IMF (Note X5) | 6.3 | 1.2 |
| Decrease in loans to the IMF | | 0.5 |
| Increase in special drawing rights (Note X5) | (4.0 | |
| (Increase)/decrease in other monetary assets (Note X5) | (0.9 | |
| Cash flow from monetary transactions | 1.4 | |
| | | |
| Cash Flow from Financing | 0.040.0 | 0.000 |
| Borrowing from the public (Note X6) | 2,010.8 | |
| Repayment of debt held by the public (Note X6) | (2,233.5 | |
| Cash flow from financing | (222.7 | <u> </u> |
| Increase (decrease) in cash balance | (9.9 | |
| Beginning cash balance (Note X7) | 52.7 | |
| Ending cash balance (Note X7) | 42.8 | 52. |

Appendix D: Statement Of Budgetary Resources (from OMB Bulletin 01- 09, September 25, 2001)

| APPENDIX D: STATEMENT OF BUDGETARY RESOURCES (from OMB bulletin 01- 09, September 25, 2001) Department/Agency/Reporting Entity COMBINED STATEMENT OF BUDGETARY RESOURCES (page 1 of 2) For the Years Ended September 30, 20x2 and 20x1 (in dollars/millions) 20x2 20x2 20x1 20x1 Non-Budgetary Credit Program Endagetary Program Endagetary Program Enancing Accounts Budgetary Resources: 1. Budget authority: 1a. Appropriations received \$xxx \$xxx \$xxx \$xxx \$xxx \$xxx \$xxx \$x | _ | | | | |
|--|---|------------|--------------------|--------------|--------------------|
| Department/Agency/Resources Part | ADDENDIV D. OTATEMENT OF DUDG | NETABY DEG | OUDOEO / c | | •• |
| Department/Agency/Reporting Entity | | SEIARY RES | OURCES (from OMB | Bulletin 01- | 09, |
| COMBINED STATEMENT OF BUDGETARY RESOURCES (page 1 of 2) For the Years Ended September 30, 20x2 and 20x1 | , | | /D | | |
| For the Years Ended September 30, 20x2 and 20x1 | | | | 4 (10) | |
| Cin dollars/millions 20x2 20x1 | | | • | 1 01 2) | |
| 20x2 20x2 20x1 20x1 Non-Budgetary Credit Program Einancing Accounts Budgetary Credit Program Einancing Accounts Budgetary Einancing Accounts Einancing | For the 16 | | | | |
| Non-Budgetary Credit Program Einancing Accounts Budgetary Credit Program Einancing Accounts Einancing Accounts | | , | | 20v1 | 20v1 |
| Budgetary Resources: Budgetary Resources: Budgetary Resources: Credit Program Financing Accounts Budgetary Financing Accounts 1. Budget authority: 1a. Appropriations received \$ xxx \$ xxx <td></td> <td>2012</td> <td></td> <td>2011</td> <td>=****</td> | | 2012 | | 2011 | =**** |
| Budgetary Resources: Financing Accounts Budgetary Financing Accounts Financing Accounts 1. Budget authority: **** 1a. Appropriations received **** *** *** ** ** ** ** ** ** ** ** ** | | | • , | | |
| Budget authority: 1a. Appropriations received \$ xxx \$ xxx \$ xxx \$ xxx \$ xxx \$ xxx \$ 1b. Borrowing authority \$ xxx | | Rudgetary | | Rudgetary | |
| 1. Budget authority: 1a. Appropriations received \$ xxx \$ xx | Budgetary Resources: | Dudgelary | r mancing Accounts | Dudgetary | Linancing Accounts |
| 1a. Appropriations received \$ xxx \$ | , | | | | |
| 1b. Borrowing authority xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx 1c. Contract authority xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx 1d. Net transfers (+/-) xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx 1e. Other xxxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx | , | \$ xxx | \$ xxx | \$ xxx | \$ xxx |
| 1c. Contract authority xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx 1d. Net transfers (+/-) xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx 1e. Other xxxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx | | XXX | | | XXX |
| 1e. Other xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx x | | XXX | XXX | XXX | XXX |
| 2. Unobligated balance: 2a. Beginning of period | 1d. Net transfers (+/-) | XXX | XXX | XXX | XXX |
| 2a. Beginning of period xxxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx 2b. Net transfers, actual (+/-) xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx x | 1e. Other | XXX | XXX | XXX | XXX |
| 2b. Net transfers, actual (+/-) xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx x | Unobligated balance: | | | | |
| 2c. Anticipated Transfers balances xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx x | 2a. Beginning of period | XXX | XXX | XXX | XXX |
| 3. Spending authority from offsetting collections: 3a. Earned 1. Collected xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx 2. Receivable from Federal sources xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx 3b. Change in unfilled customer orders 1. Advance received xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx 2. Without advance from Federal sources xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx 3c. Anticipated for rest of year, without advances xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx x | | XXX | XXX | XXX | XXX |
| 3a. Earned 1. Collected xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx x | | XXX | XXX | XXX | XXX |
| 1. Collected xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx 2. Receivable from Federal sources xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx x | , , , | | | | |
| 2. Receivable from Federal sources xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx 3b. Change in unfilled customer orders 1. Advance received xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx x | | | | | |
| 3b. Change in unfilled customer orders 1. Advance received xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx 2. Without advance from Federal sources xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx 3c. Anticipated for rest of year, without advances xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx 3d. Transfers from trust funds xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx 3e. Subtotal xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx 4. Recoveries of prior year obligations xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx | 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 | | | | |
| 1. Advance received xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx 2. Without advance from Federal sources xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx x | | XXX | XXX | XXX | XXX |
| 2. Without advance from Federal sources xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx 3c. Anticipated for rest of year, without advances xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx 3d. Transfers from trust funds xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx x | <u> </u> | | | | |
| 3c. Anticipated for rest of year, without advances xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx 3d. Transfers from trust funds xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx x | 1 | | | | |
| 3d. Transfers from trust funds | | | | | |
| 3e. Subtotal xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx 4. Recoveries of prior year obligations xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx | | | | | |
| 4. Recoveries of prior year obligations xxx xxx xxx xxx | 1 | | | | <u> </u> |
| | 1 | | | | |
| 3. TEHIDOIAHN HULAVAHADIE DUISUAHL IO FUDIIC LAW XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX | | | | | |
| 6. Permanently not available xxx xxx xxx xxx | | | | | |
| 7. Total Budgetary Resources \$\(\frac{xxx}{xxxx}\) \$\(\frac{xxx}{xxxx}\) \$\(\frac{xxxx}{xxxx}\) | 1 | . — | | | |

| • | | Reporting Entity | | | |
|--|------------------|------------------------|------------------|--------------------|--|
| | | TARY RESOURCES (pa | ge 2 of 2) | | |
| For the Year | | mber 30, 20x2 and 20x1 | | | |
| (in dollars /millions) | | | | | |
| | 20x2 | 20x2 | 20x1 | 20x1 | |
| | | Non-Budgetary | | Non-Budgetary | |
| | - | Credit Program | | Credit Program | |
| | <u>Budgetary</u> | Financing Accounts | <u>Budgetary</u> | Financing Accounts | |
| Status of Budgetary Resources: | | | | | |
| 8. Obligations incurred: | • | • | • | • | |
| 8a. Direct | \$ xxx | \$ xxx | \$ xxx | \$ xxx | |
| 8b. Reimbursable | XXX | XXX | XXX | XXX | |
| 8c. Subtotal | XXX | XXX | XXX | XXX | |
| 9. Unobligated balance: | | | | | |
| 9a. Apportioned | XXX | XXX | XXX | XXX | |
| 9b. Exempt from apportionment | XXX | XXX | XXX | XXX | |
| 9c. Other available | XXX | XXX | XXX | XXX | |
| Unobligated balance not available | XXX | XXX | XXX | XXX | |
| 11. Total Status of Budgetary Resources | <u>X,XXX</u> | <u>X,XXX</u> | <u>X,XXX</u> | <u>X,XXX</u> | |
| Relationship of Obligations to Outlays: | | | | | |
| 12. Obligated balance, net, beginning of period | XXX | XXX | XXX | XXX | |
| 13. Obligated balance transferred, net (+/-) | XXX | XXX | XXX | XXX | |
| 14. Obligated balance, net, end of period: | | | | | |
| 14a. Accounts receivable | XXX | XXX | XXX | XXX | |
| 14b. Unfilled customer orders from Federal sources | s xxx | XXX | XXX | XXX | |
| 14c. Undelivered orders | XXX | XXX | XXX | XXX | |
| 14d. Accounts payable | XXX | XXX | XXX | XXX | |
| 15. Outlays: | | | | | |
| 15a. Disbursements | XXX | XXX | XXX | XXX | |
| 15b. Collections | X <u>XX</u> | XXX | XXX | XXX | |
| 15c. Subtotal | XXX | XXX | XXX | XXX | |
| 16. Less: Offsetting receipts | XXX | X <u>XX</u> | XXX | XXX | |
| 17. Net Outlays | \$ <u>x,xxx</u> | \$ <u>x,xxx</u> | \$ <u>x,xxx</u> | \$ <u>x,xxx</u> | |
| | | | | | |

Appendix E: Statement Of Financing (from OMB Bulletin 01-09, September 25, 2001)

| APPENDIX E: STATEMENT OF FINANCING (from OMB B) | ulletin 01-0 | 9, |
|---|--------------|--------|
| September 25, 2001) | | |
| Department/Agency/Reporting Entity | . (0) | |
| CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCING (Page 1 c | of 2) | |
| For the Years Ended September 30, 20x2 and 20x1 | | |
| (in dollars /millions) | | |
| | 20x2 | 20x1 |
| Resources Used to Finance Activities: | | |
| Budgetary Resources Obligated | _ | _ |
| Obligations incurred | \$ xxx | \$ xxx |
| Less: Spending authority from offsetting collections and recoveries | XXX | XXX |
| Obligations net of offsetting collections and recoveries | XXX | XXX |
| Less: Offsetting receipts | XXX | XXX |
| 5. Net obligations | XXX | XXX |
| Other Resources | | |
| 6. Donations and forfeitures of property | XXX | XXX |
| 7. Transfers in/out without reimbursement (+/-) | XXX | XXX |
| 8. Imputed financing from costs absorbed by others | XXX | XXX |
| 9. Other (+/-) | XXX | XXX |
| 10. Net other resources used to finance activities | XXX | XXX |
| 11. Total resources used to finance activities | x,xxx | x,xxx |
| Resources Used to Finance Items not Part of the Net Cost of Operations | | |
| 12. Change in budgetary resources obligated for goods, | | |
| services and benefits ordered but not yet provided (+/-) | XXX | XXX |
| 13. Resources that fund expenses recognized in prior periods | xxx | XXX |
| 14 .Budgetary offsetting collections and receipts that do not affect net cost of operations | | |
| 14a. Credit program collections which increase liabilities for loan | | |
| guarantees or allowances for subsidy | XXX | XXX |
| 14b. Other | XXX | XXX |
| 15. Resources that finance the acquisition of assets | XXX | XXX |
| 16. Other resources or adjustments to net obligated resources that do not | | |
| affect net cost of operations (+/-) | XXX | XXX |
| 17. Total resources used to finance items not part of the net cost of operations | XXX | XXX |
| 18. Total resources used to finance the net cost of operations | x,xxx | x,xxx |

Department/Agency/Reporting Entity CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCING (Page 2 of 2) For the Years Ended September 30, 20x2 and 20x1

| (in dollars /millions) | | |
|--|--------------|-----------------|
| · | 20x2 | 20x1 |
| Components of the Net Cost of Operations that will not Require or Generate | Resou | rces in the |
| Current Period: | | |
| Components Requiring or Generating Resources in Future Periods: | | |
| 19. Increase in annual leave liability | XXX | XXX |
| 20. Increase in environmental and disposal liability | XXX | XXX |
| 21. Upward/Downward reestimates of credit subsidy expense (+/-) | XXX | XXX |
| 22. Increase in exchange revenue receivable from the public | XXX | XXX |
| 23. Other (+/-) | XXX | XXX |
| 24. Total components of Net Cost of Operations that will require or | | |
| generate resources in future periods | XXX | XXX |
| Components not Requiring or Generating Resources: | | |
| 25. Depreciation and amortization | XXX | XXX |
| 26. Revaluation of assets or liabilities (+/-) | XXX | XXX |
| 27. Other (+/-) | XXX | XXX |
| 28. Total components of Net Cost of Operations that will not require or | | |
| generate resources | XXX | XXX |
| 29. Total components of net cost of operations that will not require or generate | resourc | es |
| in the current period | XXX,X | X,XXX |
| 30. Net Cost of Operations | <u>x,xxx</u> | \$ <u>x,xxx</u> |

Glossary

See Consolidated Glossary in "Appendix E: Consolidated Glossary."